
 
1 

 

Nelson County Planning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
June 22nd, 2022 

 
Present:  Chair Mary Kathryn Allen and Commissioners Chuck Amante, Phil Proulx, Jesse Rutherford 
and Robin Hauschner 

Staff Present: Dylan Bishop, Director  

Call to Order:  Chair Allen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P. M. in the General District Courtroom, 
County Courthouse, Lovingston.  

Chair Allen amended the agenda to add review of proposed Willow Branch Subdivision. 

Review of the minutes May 25th, 2022  

Mr. Hauschner noted that he had not made the motion to recommend approval for SUP 633 and that it 
was Mr. Harman.  

Mr. Amante made a motion to approve the May 25th minutes with the noted correction. Mr. 
Hauschner seconded the motion.  

 

Yes: 

Charles Amante 

Phil Proulx 

Robin Hauschner 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

 

Public Hearings: 

1. Special Use Permit #657 – Conference Center 

Ms. Bishop presented the following information:  



 
2 

 

 



 
3 

 

 

Wes Roberts of 1091 Freshwater Cove Ln in Lovingston is the applicant. He presented renderings of the 
proposed structure and explained that its main purpose would be to expand their tasting room. He 
noted that his family took over the property in August of 2021 and have seen their wine club increase by 
about 80%. They are also experiencing a lot more agritourism traffic post covid. He explained that they 
have a small indoor space currently and that most of their seating is outdoors. He noted that they would 
like to be able to have more seating indoors when the weather is poor. He explained that they also plan 
to have some wine club events and private events in the structure. He noted that VDOT is requiring 
them to widen their driveway by 2’ on either side and acquire a sight line easement from their neighbor. 
He added that they have identified a septic site and are applying for well and septic permits.  

 

Chair Allen opened the public hearing at 7:10.  

Chair Allen closed the public hearing at 7:10.  

 

Ms. Proulx made a motion to recommend approval of SUP 657 – Conference Center. Mr. Hauschner 
seconded the motion.  

Yes: 

Charles Amante 

Phil Proulx 



 
4 

 

Robin Hauschner 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

 

2. Rezoning #658 – R-1 Residential to B-1 Business 

Ms. Bishop presented the following information: 



 
5 

 

 



 
6 

 

 

 

Hunter Woodson lives at 1931 Variety Mills Rd in Arrington and is the applicant for this project. He 
explained that he is the president/owner of Blue Ridge Christmas Cottage. He explained that they used 
the activity center at Calvary Baptist Church last year but that they are looking to expand and have a 
more private location for families.  

Mr. Amante asked if the parcel was split zoned. Ms. Bishop noted that this is a GIS error and that the 
entire lot is zoned R-1 and is proposed to be fully rezoned to B-1.  

 

Chair Allen opened the public hearing at 7:17.  

Chair Allen closed the public hearing at 7:17.  

 

Mr. Hauschner made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning 658– R-1 to B-1. Mr. Amante 
seconded the motion.  

Yes: 

Charles Amante 

Phil Proulx 

Robin Hauschner 

Mary Kathryn Allen 



 
7 

 

 

3. Special Use Permit #659 – Campground (One Site) 

Ms. Bishop presented the following information:  



 
8 

 



 
9 

 

 

Ms. Proulx asked what the applicants would be able to do if the approval was not conditioned to be one 
site. Ms. Bishop noted that they would still need to come back if they made a substantial change to what 
was approved.  

Chair Allen opened the public hearing at 7:20.  

Chair Allen closed the public hearing at 7:20.  

 

Mr. Amante made a motion to recommend approval of Special Use Permit 659 – One-Site 
Campground with the condition that there be one tent site. Ms. Proulx seconded the motion.  

 

Yes: 

Charles Amante 

Phil Proulx 

Robin Hauschner 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

 

Other Business: 

1. Willow Branch Subdivision 

Ms. Bishop explained that a subdivision typically doesn’t come to the Planning Commission if it is less 
than 11 lots. She explained that this is an 8 lot subdivision now but it is Phase 1 of a larger plan that 
includes potential for future phases. 



 
10 

 

Ms. Allen asked if this would come back for more approval. Ms. Bishop explained that it would only 
come back if something was changed or if they were doing an additional phase. Ed Willman of 223 
Warwick Ln in Lynchburg is the surveyor for the project. He noted that the size of the current proposal is 
about 118 acres.  

Ms. Proulx noted that the lot shape at lot 4 with the road split is odd. Mr. Willman noted that the land 
owner was trying to retain the original home site by forming the lot that way.  

 

Ms. Proulx made a motion to approve Willow Branch Subdivision – Phase 1. Mr. Amante seconded the 
motion.  

 

Yes: 

Charles Amante 

Phil Proulx 

Robin Hauschner 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

 

2. Proposed Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance Updates 
 

Kennels 

Ms. Bishop presented the following information: 



 
11 

 



 
12 

 

 



 
13 

 

Ms. Bishop explained that she is presenting two scenarios, either adopting both Options 1 and 2 or 
adopting Option 3 on its own. She explained that she presented both proposed kennel applications to 
the Board of Supervisors along with the three options and that the Board referred it back to the 
Planning Commission for a recommendation.  

Ms. Allen asked what the thoughts were on adding it as by right in A-1. Ms. Bishop noted that it is 
already by right in A-1, SE-1, and M-2 with the current definition. 

Mr. Hauschner asked if someone had 5 or more dogs associated with a dwelling if it would be by-right. 
Ms. Bishop noted that the only time it would come to the Planning Commission is if it were over 5000 sq 
ft. Mr. Amante asked what reason there might be to not choose Option 3. Ms. Bishop noted that some 
people felt that it should align with County Code and Animal Control definitions but that in her opinion it 
was not unusual. She explained that Option 3 included related uses and made all kennels a Special Use 
Permit that would require individual review. Ms. Bishop added that kennels accessory to a Single Family 
Dwelling would be a Home Occupation and would still be by-right.  

 

Ms. Proulx made a motion to bring Option 3 of the proposed Kennel Ordinance Update to public 
hearing at their meeting on July 27th, 2022. Mr. Hauschner seconded the motion.  

 

Yes: 

Charles Amante 

Phil Proulx 

Robin Hauschner 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

 

Fmaily Division from Trust 

Ms. Bishop presented the following information:  



 
14 

 



 
15 

 

 

Ms. Bishop noted that they have added that all trust members must be immediate family members, 
agree that the property be subdivided, and place a 15-year restrictive covenant. She added that they are 



 
16 

 

currently not in compliance with state code in regards to access width. It is her recommendation that 
access width be changed to 10’, 15’, or 20’. She added that minimum lot area for family divisions is 1 
acre and that they can change it to 2 acres. Ms. Proulx noted that she would prefer 2 acres.  

The Planning Commission requested that Ms. Bishop return with a draft that has a 15-year restrictive 
covenant, a 20’ access width, and a 2-acre minimum.  

 

Comprehensive Plan Update: 

Ms. Bishop noted that the Board of Supervisors had approved a resolution recommending approval for 
three Smart Scale applications. She noted that two of them have been applied for several times. She 
explained that the applications are for the intersections of Routes 6 & 151, Route 151 & Tanbark, and 
Route 29 and Front St. She explained that flyers/information are being distributed and that stakeholder 
and public engagement sessions are planned for July 13tt & 20th and August 3rd.  

 

Board of Supervisors Report: 

Ms. Bishop noted that the Board approved SUP 577 Two-Site Campground, SUP 603 Signs, SUP 611 
Automobile Graveyard Class C. The Board also approved SUP 633 Outdoor Entertainment Venue with 
the following conditions: 

• The maximum number of attendees at any event shall not exceed 150 and shall be the total 
daily number of attendees permitted each day. 

• There shall be no amplified sound after 8:00 p.m. on Sunday through Thursday or after 10:00 
p.m. on Friday and Saturday. 

• Lighting shall be directional and glare shielded to prevent light pollution onto neighboring 
properties, roadways, and the dark night sky. 

• Applicant shall secure and maintain an Annual Permit from VDOT for a signage and traffic 
control plan prior to any events. 

• The existing tree buffer shall be maintained. 
• A maximum of 25 events per year is permitted. 
• Events shall be limited to one day (i.e. no multi-day events.) 

Ms. Proulx made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:00 PM. Chair Allen seconded the motion.  

Yes:  

Charles Amante  

Phil Proulx 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

Robin Hauschner 

 



 
17 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Emily Hjulstrom 

Planner/Secretary, Planning & Zoning 

 

 

 


